N\iddles@cﬁjgh

Legal and Governance

moving forward

CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD

Date: Monday 14th December, 2020
Time: 4.00 pm
Venue: Virtual Meeting

AGENDA

Please note: this is a virtual meeting.

channel at 4.00 pm on Monday 14th December, 2020

The meeting will be live-streamed via the Council’s Youtube

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for Absence

Minutes- Corporate Parenting Board- 28 October 2020

The minutes of the Corporate Parenting Board held on 28
October 2020 were submitted for approval.

Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of interest.
| LAC nothing

Action Plan- 28 October 2020

The Democratic Services Officer will present the actions taken
from the meeting held on 28 October 2020.

Voice of the Child/ Participation Update

The Voice of the Child Coordinator will provide a presentation
to the Board.

Page 1


https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesboroughcouncil
https://www.youtube.com/user/middlesboroughcouncil

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

MALAP Spotlight- update

The Chair of Corporate Parenting Board will provide a verbal
update on the MALAP spotlight report.

The Police and their support towards Children Looked After -
Further update

Detective Chief Inspector 754 Deb Fenny from Cleveland
Police will provide a verbal update to the Board.
Residential Services- April 2020 — Present- Regulation 44
Report

The Head of Service — Futures For Families will provide a
presentation on the Regulation 44 report.

Future for Families update

The Service Manager for Futures for Families will provide a
presentation to the Board.

Fostering Service Update

The Head of Service will be in attendance to provide a
presentation in relation to the service.

Independent Reviewing Officers' (IRO) Annual report- April
2019- March 2020

Principal Social Worker & Service Manager will be in
attendance to present the annual report to the Board.
Adoption Tees Valley- Bi-annual report

The Service Manager from Adoption Tees Valley (ATV) will

present the Bi-annual report to the Board.

Any Other business

Charlotte Benjamin

Page 2

21-30

31-40

41 - 52

53-74



Director of Legal and Governance Services
Town Hall
Middlesbrough
Friday 4 December 2020

MEMBERSHIP

Councillors A Hellaoui (Chair), T Higgins (Vice-Chair), L Garvey, A High, J McTigue,
M Nugent, J Platt, M Smiles, J Thompson, Z Uddin, C Wright and J Walker

Assistance in accessing information

Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information
please contact Susie Blood, 01642 729645, susie_blood@middlesbrough.gov.uk

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



G abed

ACTIONS- CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD- 17.09.2020

Action

Responsible Director/Officer

Progress

Action 1 (action from 17 September 2020)
Update on Future for Families

Rachel Farnham/ Paul Rudd/ Rob Hamer

To be updated every other meeting

Action 2 (action from 18 June 2020)
Mental Health Assessment for Looked After Children.
Headstart

Trevor Dunn, Head of Assess to Education/
Wendy Kelly, Headstart Programme Manager

DATE

Action 3 (action from 17 September 2020)

Foster Carer trends

Paul Rudd/ Jennifer Rowan

Trend date to be presented to Board members
on a quarterly basis.- next scheduled meeting
14 December 2020.

Action 4 (action from 28 October 2020)

Detective Chief Inspector 754 Deb Fenny to provide
information on her role within neighbouring authorities
Corporate Parenting Board.

Detective Chief Inspector 754 Deb Fenny

At a future meeting

Action 5 (action from 28 October 2020)

Participation- That a breakdown of responses from the
Tell me more survey be provided to the Board

Bethany Bradshaw, Voice of the Child
Coordinator

Board to be presented with information on
14 December 2020.

POST COVID

Action 8 (action from 11 September 2019)
Visit to Adoption Tees Valley

Susie Blood- Democratic Services Officer
Vicky Davidson-Boyd- Service Manager,
Adoption Tees Valley

Future visit to be arranged- post Covid 19

Action 9 (action from 7 November 2019 and 28
October 2020)

To gain the views of Children Looked After and Care
leavers of ‘what is a Corporate Parent’ and to raise the
profile of Councillors with young people.

Bethany Bradshaw, Voice of the Child
Coordinator

To be incorporated within a MALAP spotlight
report focusing on ‘what is a corporate parent’,
a pledge to our children looked after.

G W3]l epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank



~Participation update
*  December 2020



Our mission
is to show I,
Middlesbrough '

g oabed

children that | @@
they matter. ‘




This presentation will include:

- The Middlesbrough Children Matter website demonstration

- UAn Update on Participation

b

«Q
@ . : , . . :
- 9An update on wider Children’s services communications

- The Tell us More Survey at a glance



The Website 1s now LIVE!




Working in partner_shlp with the Centre for Practice @ cHILD
excellence Practice lead to embed Voice of the MATT
Child on the front line.

- To ensure that team plans are focused on voice of the child

- To clearly evidence voice of the child and the impact

- To improve compliance and recording

- ldentify a voice of the child lead in each team who is responsible for sharing the pro-forma with
the team

- ldentify any barriers to visiting children alone or in time

- gxploring meaningful direct work

Sharing the Middlesbrough Children Matter Mission and Vision with staff teams.

A3 teams started working with the Practice lead in December 2020.

Future plans

- Participation officer is to work alongside the Practice lead to be present in team
- Participation officer is to work alongside teams to meet children

and young people at point of referral

fo_$%

[N
- 8 =
\.. = o

¢




MIDDLESBROU
( : g CHILDREN
MATTER
« 2 of our Care Leavers are to be employed as Apprentices.

Their roles include working in our Futures for Families team, working with the Principle
Social worker to support the training and development of the workforce and supporting
the Participation team with their work.

« Pathways are running a Care Leavers drop in on a Friday morning with their allocated
CAMHS worker as a result of feedback from the Care Leavers forum.
Q

(@)
. ‘ghe Participation Officer role is now live for recruitment. The Care Leavers forum are
planning the interviews that will take place in January 2021.

« Xavier has designed the Christmas card that will be sent to all looked
after children, Care Leavers and staff

* The launch of Middlesbrough Virtual Youth Council will take place pat £ IC
on Thursday 14" January 2021




3 Gemma Maile MBC
@GEr e t Santa money
) n put our Secre
this year the team pt- are leavers.
s SOh r azd made a little gift for all S?r—c arad Bethanypg;.
togetne h a fab team #teamre NyBradshawMBC @y, ., -
proud to be part of suc - #ECLCM mazing effort gy, *Bethany . 16p
SCOZ i ,x,ﬂ«,'\\dz'enn‘\atte: #ECLCN A” Cal’e LeaveI’S WhO are #Middleshro, - uys - thanks to who do &%
im;dm\ebz_),r._,lqng:u ﬁ\ge‘fhgathel{o‘e >ProughChildrenMatter Nated! 4 ™™
= mbnanﬂbl’ 204 ‘.:»T »“ 11087 i?ijw.aCi":”mlD': .. . .
o 26582371 @khammond1987 ©) living independently or in @ Bethany Brown ., ...
L Mi = 29rowng3s . 17y
semi-independent livin thisyour SN MACH just :
- P g his year @ the, vante

will receive a Christmas
Gift Hamper.

6, Siobhan Davies MBC
@Siobhan17631204

IROs dont just want to tell Middlesbrough children they
matter, they want them to own it and carry it
everywhere they go! #MiddlesbroughChildrenMatter
One for the care leavers Christmas stocking this year.
Cant wait to see it all together @GemmaMbc

-




B
. i ] S CHILD
Wider Children’s services communications ‘/ MATT

 Fortnightly newsletters sent to the workforce from Rachel Farnham (Director of Children's Care) and Rob Brown
(Director of Education and Partnerships)

» Fortnightly newsletters from the Children with Disabilities team and Pathways are added to the website

« Ran a Middlesbrough Children Matter values and behavior campaign which was shared with the workforce &
social media.

T : i

* Mgldlesbrough Mindfulness month — our Care Leavers forum wanted to run a month of mindfulness to cheer
pé&)ple up during lockdown. 1 Mindfullness quote a day was circulated using social media, email and the text
sekvice

* Rebranded Twitter - #Middlesbrough Children Matter 370 followers — 250 impressions
MCM website launch tweet got 6,123 impressions and 300 engagements and 76 clicks on the website!

» Created a Middlesbrough Children Matter Instagram. — 50 followers

* BoroMYP — 158 followers
* BoroDeputyMYP — 135 followers

* Planned a service specific roadshow to discuss progress on the Improvement Journey with each service.




Engagement groups Q= SHiiDREN
E R

« Mini CICC

5 members - An internal email has gone out to all resource workers and social workers to encourage
engagement of children and young people in this group. Sue Butcher has also encouraged staff to
have conversations with young people about attending this group.

* Children in Care Council

A virtual Children in Care Council meeting planned for Monday 21st December. A full
communications plan is in place to encourage Social Workers and Independent Reviewing Officers to
encourage their young people to attend.

-§Care Leavers forum

We have 6 active members of the group. We meet weekly and speak regularly via the Care Leavers
forum Whatsapp group. A CAMHS worker attends every session to support any mental health needs

Recent tasks:

» The recruitment of the Participation Officer, planning the interviews

 The development of the Tell Us More Survey questions to ensure the tone is right
* Planning the Care Leavers Christmas card competition.

» Attending the Life Story work task and finish group




i i i €/ CHILDREN
Children in Care Council plan D e

o

Microsoft Excel
Worksheet

o
jab)
«Q
D
=
(@))




Tell Us More survey

at a glance




8T abed

Ao

PIF

Adobe Acrobat
Document

Ao

PIOF

Adobe Acrobat
Document




Any questions?

Page 19




This page is intentionally left blank



Residential Services

April 2020 — Present
Regulation 44 Report




Z2Z abed

.

Middl‘esg;cﬁdlgh

o 7

Ovur mission is to show
Middlesbrough children
that they matter.

TN,
,“é: y f £ x'/\



MIDDLESBROUGH
( ’CH“.D EN
MATTTER

Regulation 44
What is a Reg 447?

The Children’s Home Regulations 2015

Regulation 44 visits are when an Independent Person visits a children’s residential home
ong monthly basis. Itis the role of the Reg 44 Visitor to write a report that talks about how
thé&&home is being run. They have to check that the children are being kept safe and how
we@ their wellbeing is being promoted. This means that they need to check that the rules
that children’s homes have to follow (The Children’s Homes Regulations) are being

done. This includes making sure that the wishes and feelings of the children in the home
are being listened to and that there are meetings happening in the home for them to have
their say.




ES

L
=

ROUG

I

B
D
T

L U
I E
E

T &

Regulation 44 i

How do they happen?

The Reg 44 visitor does not have to say if they are visiting and may come “unannounced”
They will look at the files of the children who live in the home. They will need to check they
have the child’s permission to do this. They will also need to check that they have your

social worker’s permission.

T
jab)

Q | . . e .
The visitor will also look around the home to check that it is a safe place to live and that
thete are fire alarms and extinguishers in place. They will also make sure it is decorated
well and that the children and young people have comfortable bedrooms and places to relax

The visitor will also ask to speak to the children and young people, on their own if they want
to find out if they are happy living in the home and the things that are written in their files are
happening.

The reqgulation 44 report supports the regulation 45 report. This is the managers quality
assurance audit of the last 6 months.

Regulation 44 and 45 are sent to Ofsted (monthly and 6 monthly)
D e



Regulation 44 Inspection Focus

1. The quality and purpose of care standard (see regulation 6)

2. The children’s views, wishes and feelings standard (see regulation 7)
3. The education standard (see regulation 8)

4. The enjoyment and achievement standard (see regulation 9)

5. yThe health and well-being standard (see regulation 10)

6. mThe positive relationships standard (see regulation 11)

7.%The protection of children standard (see regulation 12)

8. The leadership and management standard (see regulation 13)

9. The care planning standard (see regulation 14)




GH

U
EN
ER

MIDDLESBRO
( ’CH“.DR
M AT

T

Regulation 44 Recommendations

Recommendation - Care team meeting to explore D2 and the approach
ingtelation to police involvement.

9¢ ®

Recommendation - consider how often staff should discuss the option of
CAMHS and substance misuse support with D1 and to evidence these

discussions.




GH

€ ciikoey
Positive Regulation 44 Feedback

Feedback from a professional was very positive in relation to how the home support younq people and communicate with
the wider system.

Comments from Virtual school EW who the inspector spoke too- I (inspector) spoke to EW via phone who said “if |
have raised any issues the home has worked with us to address this. We are looking to do some training with the staff to
further upskill staff in attachment. The home attends all meetings and overall, there is a good working relationship between
virtual school and the home staff. They are keen to work with us.

They professional feedback received was very complimentary, highlighting the support provided by staff to the young person

ar the very good communication
)

crﬁfa A — ‘| feel safe and enjoy the activities that we do

The feedback from the foster carer was positive in relation to the staff communication with her and their professionalism
Social worker for A. He said “staff are amazing. The RM really knows everything about her young people. The home has
been really supportive. | can’t fault them.

Feedback from the quardian for A included comments such as “extremely, extremely impressed by the way my child has
been treated and nurtured while staying at the home.

Feedback from a professional was positive, highlighting that the home continue to do all they can to promote D’s
independence and positive choices.




<0
- =
=y
oo

pul

(@]
mmc
yo) 4

. . 7
Positive Regulation 44 Feedback

D1 continues to enjoy a stable placement at the home where he has resided for some considerable time. The strength of
relationships he has with staff promotes his respect for them which is seeinqg little to no incidents in recent months.

Inspector - Young people’s health needs continue to be well understood by the home and they keep up to date records in
this regard. Young people have been supported to access health care where required. The team are taking all necessary
precg'gutions to reduce the risk of covid-19 within the home.

Q
Insq%ctor - From evidence seen, it is apparent that the home is continuing to be taking all steps they possibly can to
safe®uard and promote D’s wellbeing.

Telephone call to KHC, social worker for A. He said “staff are amazing. The RM really knows everything about her young
people. The home has been really supportive. | can’t fault them.

Thank you card from young person L who has moved on to adult services with comments including “going to miss you
all.... Keep up the good work....thank you for the time you've spent with me.”

They have really been a god send as we were struqqling.

The service has strong leadership with clear vision and robust guality assurance processes in place.




Recommendations

Regulation 44 reports are presented to Corporate Parenting
Panel on a Monthly basis. This will allow for scrutiny and
di§cussions to be held surrounding recommendations and

gabd practice examples.




DDDDDDDDDDDDD

T%wan kyou/Question




FUTURES

FOR FAMILIES

T¢ obed

0T wal| epuaby

ST g -

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlest%hgh



FUTURES

The journey so far
g September 2020 — November 2020

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



FUTURESf |

FOR FAMILIES Interventions

September

Edge of care fragile placements - 14 young people supported
Regular in-reach support from the hub - 3 young people

October

Edge of care fragile placements - 38 young people supported
Regular in-reach support from the hub - 4 young people

cg abed

November

Edge of care fragile placements - 39 young people supported
Regular in-reach support from the hub - 5 young people

e

= ] ' L. ST G - Rl hi-

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



FUTURESF

FOR FAMILIES

Total Direct Support Hours Each Month

177:35

150:40

99:10

v abed

Sep-20 Oct-20 Nowv-20

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough




FUTURESF Intervention Types

FOR FAMILIES
Returning Home / Moving On % 0%

Education

12%

Substance Misuse 12%

Independence skills md%%

Safeguarding

Og
o
R

g Emotional & mental health m 40%
®
5
o voc I 5%
ol
Activiti “ “ﬁ
ctivities 18%

. . 13%
Parenting and family !%?%

Relationship building

75%

0% 10% 20%% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80%

HNov HQOct HSep

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough




FOR FAMI.LIES I m p aCt

Deep dives - 40 young peoples care experiences have been analysed.
Outcomes have been shared with the social work teams and principle
social worker to improve practice

75% of all young people accessing FFF are receiving support (either
direct or indirect) from the Life Coach
Of those accessing support 92% had no previous identified need.

9¢ obed

Previously 32.5% of young people had an undiagnosed SLC. Of those
92% are male

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



FUTURES Impact continued.....
FOR FAMILIES

In the past 12 months 11 individuals had a total of 94 missing episodes.

Due to targeted outreach 100% of those children have seen a reduction
In their missing episodes of between 50-100%

«Q
@D

86% of those young people have not had any missing episodes since
receiving support from FFF

Currently FFF and supporting 9 young people to return to their families
or to their community from expensive residential placements.

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



FUTURESF Potential cost avoidance

Potential cost avoided till 18 years old Overall
|Forecasted Spend before FFF intervention £9,932,217.94
|Forecasted Spend with FFF intervention £2,816,097.89
|Forecasted Cost Avoidance £7,116,120.06
| % Agbidance 71.6%

«Q

o)

& Apr 20 - Mar 21 Overall
Forecasted Spend before FFF intervention £1,598,337.82
Forecasted Spend with FFF intervention £910,228.39
Forecasted Cost Avoidance £688,109.43
% Avoidance 43.1%

middlesbrough.gov.uk

£12,000,000.00

£10,000,000.00

£8,000,000.00

£6,000,000.00

£4,000,000.00

£2,000,000.00

£0.00

Overall Forecasted Costs

£9,932,217.94

£2,816,097.89

Forecasted Spend before FFF intervention  Forecasted Spend with FFF intervention

M‘dd.'.ﬁﬁ.'?..',’?‘é?ﬂgh



FUTURESi;

FOR FAMILIES

Any questions & thankyou .............

6E abed

middlesbrough.gov.uk Middlesbrough



This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Parenting Board

Quarterly Report
2020/21




2 abed

Midd,'sz@@gh

o 7

Our missionis to show

Middlesbrough children
that they matter.



1. Number of Carers and Places:

Quarter: Carers: Places:
Annual Return — 2019/20 141 267

o Quarter 1 149 243

«Q

> |Quarter 2 156 263

) Quarter 3
Quarter 4




MIDDLESBROUGH
(JCH“.DREN
M AT E R

T

2. Number of Carers by Primary Care Type:

Primary Care Type: 2019/20 | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
1 2 3 4
Long-Term 21 19 17
§ Short-Term 74 85 89
E Fully Approved
Connected Persons 27 33 38
Fostering to Adopt 1 1 1
Respite 18 11 11
Total: 141 149 156




G obed

(:') CHILDREN
MATTER
3. Number of Carers Approved:
Approved Carers: 2019/20 | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
1 2 3 4

Mainstream 22 5 5

Fully Approved

Connected Persons 19 5 7

Total: 41 10 12




ot abed

(:') CHILDREN

MATTER

4. Number of Carers De-Registrations:

De-Registrations 2019/20 | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
1 2 3 4

Mainstream 16 2 o)

Fully Approved

Connected Persons 8 2 2

Total: 24 4 2




8. Placements:

used for Respite
Care

Age Group: 2019/20 | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
1 2 3 4
Number of 163 145 174
Children
O/Number of vacant 15 5 15
(f'i places
~NINumber of not 54 55 56
available places
Number of places 35 16 16




9a. Number of not available places:

Not available 2019/20 | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter | Quarter
reason: 1 2 3 4
Carer taking a

break/pending 19 20 18

resignation
Needs of child
currently in 26 26 29
placement

Only available if
sibling group 6 6 7
placed

Used by CYP
Staying Put after 3 3 2
turning 18

Total: 54 95 56

8t abed




9b. Number of not available places:

Breakdown of Carers taking a break/pending Quarter 2
resignation
Personal / Health Reasons 7
Pending Resignation 2
égUCurrent Investigation — Standards of Care 2
QEPost Adoption 2
Fully Approved Connected Person’s — To be Closed 2
Update Assessment Required 3
Total: 18




12. Recruitment:

Recruitment: [2019/20 |Quarter 1 [Quarter 2 |Quarter 3 |Quarter 4

Initial 123 12 19
Enquiries

T
jab)
«Q
@D
a1
o




MIDDLESBROUGH
(!/CHILDREN
MATTER

T

What’s Working Well

- We have devised a more robust initial screening process that encourages greater
dialogue with applicants early in the assessment process and we anticipate that this
will reduce the number of initial home visits that do not progress to assessment.

* We have developed plans to streamline the initial enquiry process to reduce the
time between initial enquiry and home visit.

3\ foster carer recruitment campaign is being delivered in December and staff have
Seen encouraged to contribute to the planning and consultation with the marketing
gream.

* We have recruited a team of Independent Social Workers to complete Form F
assessments to ensure that we can meet the demand generated by the recruitment
campaign.(recruitment campaign goes live in 01.21

* There has been a reduction in requests for connected carer assessments due to the
greater scrutiny on the range of placement options for children.

« We are developing the Supported Lodgings Provision to ensure robust
assessments of potential providers are completed and that subsequent supervision
and monitoring of providers is in line with the expectations of mainstream foster
carers



o
jab)
«Q

@D
Ul

OUESTIONS




Agenda Item 12

Middlesbrugh

moving forward

Independent
Reviewing Officers’

(IRO) Annual Report
April 2019-March 2020

The contribution of the Independent Reviewing Service to Quality Assurance and Improving
Services for Child Protection and for Looked After Children

Date: 8t October 2020
Author: Siobhan Davies,

Review & Development Service Manager

Page 53



Contents

Introduction and Purpose of the ANNUAl REPOIt ..............c.ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiie e reaee e 3
Legal Context & Statutory FUNCtion of the IRO .............occciiiiiiiiiii i 3
TEAM STIUCTUIE ...ttt e s et e s sba et e s ssb e e e s ssaaeessanes 4
Review of 2019/20 Priorities and Setting the SCENE..............c..oovviiiiieiieicriecteceeeee ettt ere s 4
The IRO workload and what it means for Middlesbrough children......................coooi i, 6
What did Ofsted say about IRO’s in Middlesbrough? ... 7
What are We doiNg @BOUL it......cciiiiiiiiiiiie e e e s e e e e ee e e e ee e e e ae e e s nbeeeeenareeas 9
What does performance data indicate for 2019-207? ...............oooiiiiiii et 8
Overview of Children Who are in QU CAre .......ooueeieiiieiie ettt sttt sb e bt e saeesane e 10
What is the Issues Resolution Process telling us about Children’s experience in our Care......cccccccveeeecvveeennns 11
SEIVICE LEVEI CNallENEES ...eii ittt e et e e e st e e e sbte e e e s beeeeesbtaeeesasteeessastaeessnssaeessnnes 12
What's it like to be @ child iN QU CAr@? .....oo ittt s e sate e sbee e 14
What needs to happen to improve things for children in our care?..................... Error! Bookmark not defined.
Children who are subject of a Protection Plan.........cccccueveecieiicciieeeccieee e Error! Bookmark not defined.

IRO Scrutiny of Child Protection ........ccueeeeciiiiiiiieeeccieee et Error! Bookmark not defined.

Strengthen the IRO SEIVICE......uiii it Error! Bookmark not defined.

Smarter use of customer feedback .......ccccceviiiiniiiiiiie Error! Bookmark not defined.
Participation & FEEdDacK .........ccueiiiiiiiie i Error! Bookmark not defined.
Scrutiny and Chall@NGe .............oooeiiii et Error! Bookmark not defined.
Y0101 30T VU PRPPINt 19

Page 54



Introduction and Purpose of the Annual Report
This report provides information on the Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) and their contribution
to improving outcomes for children in care, care leavers and those children subject to a Protection
Plan during the reporting year April 2019 to March 2020. The report is in line with the statutory
requirements. It was completed by the Review and Development unit Service Manager and based on
comprehensive input from all IROs, business support.

Legal Context & Statutory Function of the IRO

The primary task of the IRO is to ensure that the care plans for our children and young people fully
reflect their needs, ensure that their wishes and feelings are given full and due consideration and
that the actions set out in the plan are consistent with the Local Authority’s statutory responsibilities.
As Corporate Parents each Local Authority should ensure that they act for the children and young
people they look after as a responsible and conscientious parent.

The appointment by the Local Authority of an IRO is a statutory requirement. The statutory duties of
the IRO are set out in Section 25B (1) Children Act 1989;

e Monitor the performance by the Local authority of their functions in relation to the child’s
case;

e Participate in any review of the child’s case;

e Ensure that any ascertained wishes and feelings of the child concerning the case are given
due consideration by the appropriate authority; and

e Perform any other function which is prescribed in regulations.

There are two clear and separate aspects of the function of an IRO:

1. Chairing the child’s review; and
2. Monitoring the child’s case on an ongoing basis.

The IRO handbook sets out the statutory roles and duties as well as the strategic and managerial
responsibilities of Local Authorities in establishing an effective IRO service.

In summary the IRO has a number of specific responsibilities, including;

e Promoting the voice of the child;

e Ensuring that plans for looked after children are based on a detailed and informed
assessment, are up to date, effective and provide a real and genuine response to each child’s
needs;

e Making sure that the child understands how an advocate could help and his/her entitlement
to one;

e Offering a safeguard to prevent any ‘drift’ in care planning for looked after children and the
delivery of services to them;

e Monitoring the activity of the local authority as a corporate parent in ensuring that care plans
have given proper consideration and weight to the child’s wishes and feelings and that, where
appropriate, the child fully understands

IRO Handbook paragraph 2.4

Page 55



All of the IROs in Middlesbrough are employed in a dual role, as well as independent reviewing
officers for children and young people in care they provide independent Chairing of Child Protection
Conferences, which is a separate statutory function under Working Together 2018 for which they are
accountable to the Director of Children’s Care. The benefit of combining the two roles means that
there is a greater level of consistency and oversight for those children and young people who
transition from Child Protection and come into our care. The children and young people can then
benefit from continued relationships to support improved outcomes irrespective of a child’s status.

Team Structure

Director of Prevention &

A Executive Director of Chil-
Partnerships,

dren’s Care,
Rob Brown v

Service Manager,

Siobhan Davies

RN RN

Gail Claire Susan Jane Simon Hannah

Independent Reviewing Officers

Review of 2019/20 Priorities and Setting the scene

The IROs in Middlesbrough work within the Review and Development unit, throughout 2019/20 there
has been a number of changes to the frontline and senior management arrangements. During early
2019/20 the Head of Service post was deleted, the Team Manager post was evaluated as a Service
Manager. The Service Manager is now responsible for operational line management of IROs and
strategic planning for the unit. To increase independence of the IRO’s the unit was moved under the
management of Director of Prevention and Partnerships, Rob Brown. The Service Manager
maintained links with the then Executive Director of Children’s Care so that the IROs could provide a
line of sight to front line practice, acting as a critical friend to Children’s Care.

Due to an increase in demand on the service (more children in our care and subject to a protection
plan) two additional IRO posts were created. 1 IRO was seconded to a ‘Senior IRO’ position to support
with management oversight of the IRO team.

During November 2019 Middlesbrough Local Authority was inspected by Ofsted using the Inspecting
Local Authority Children’s Services (ILACs) Framework, the outcome was ‘inadequate’ in all 4 areas

Page 56

4



(Impact of leaders on social work practice with children and families; the experience and progress of
children who need help and protection; the experiences and progress of children in care and care
leavers; and overall effectiveness). The report makes a number of specific references to the IRO
Service and improvements that must be made to the quality and effectiveness of IRO oversight and
challenge. IROs have a duty to resolve problems arising out of the Care Planning process using
guidance from the IRO Handbook, which involves escalating any emerging dispute regarding a child’s
Care Plan through the existing management structure and, as a last resort, externally to Cafcass. It is
the task of each local authority to put in place a formal process for the IRO to raise their concerns, in
Middlesbrough this is known as the Issues Resolution Process. It was a priority in 2019/20 to review
and develop the process with a view to evidencing that the IRO challenge is having an impact on
outcomes for children, this remains a key priority for 2020/21. The Issues Resolution Process must
be consistently used to challenge concerns regarding practice in key areas identified by Ofsted, such
as delay in permanence planning for children, delays in responding to neglect and children who are
not receiving the right support at the right time. We will know this is working when children are safer
as aresult of IRO challenge and this can be demonstrated through thorough analysis of IRO challenge.
During 2020/21 there will be a series of panels known as ‘Challenge Clinics’ to monitor effectiveness
of IRO challenges. The Panel will be made up of the Service Manager for the IROs and Head of Service
for the Social Work teams. The child’s IRO, Social Worker and their Manager will attend, by
appointment, to talk about what impact IRO challenge has had for children and young people. The
outcome of clinics will feedback to senior managers in quality and performance workshops and to
the workforce via the Principal Social Worker.

Children’s Social Care has seen an increase in demand at all levels from Early Help to Children in our
care. During 2019/20 the performance in some areas has declined meaning priorities set for last year,
such as improving the timeliness of initial child protection conferences, have not been achieved and
will continue to be a priority throughout 2020/21.

It is a positive that the % of children subject of a protection plan over 2-years has reduced from 8.6%
to 4.5%. in 2019/20, however the focus has now shifted to those children who have been subject to
a child protection plan over 15-months as we know from audit and from Ofsted that some children
do not receive the right service at the right time. During 2019/20 a challenge clinic took place so that
learning could be identified for individual children as well as themes that can be identified,
understood and used to inform practice improvements. A report was produced by the RAD unit and
shared with the senior management team (see page 16 & 17).

In order to improve outcomes for children, ensure timely progress of their plans the quality of child
protection conferences and multi-agency decision making needs to improve. This was a priority in
2019/20 and remains a priority for 2020/21. We know from performance data that the timeliness of
child protection conferences have declined, what we need to see is not only an improvement in
compliance with statutory timescales but evidence that all agencies clearly identify risk, that risks are
analysed within the conference to support professional judgements and decision making which lead
to SMART plans and increase safety for our children. Work has been undertaken within the unit to
re-launch practice standards for Child Protection Conference and this will be launched in 2020/21.

Page 57

5



Children and young people continue to provide some feedback to the unit about their experience of
being a child in our care or a child who is subject to a protection plan, however the feedback is not
consistent and not yet used to inform service delivery. However, Middlesbrough’s young people are
a key part of the recruitment process for Independent Reviewing Officers and any key changes to
review and feedback documents is always done in consultation with the Children in Care Council
(CIca).

A Participation Officer (Apprentice) for the Review and Development Unit created a ‘Guide to being
in our Care’ in consultation with our Mini CICC and Care Leavers Forum. The guide tells children and
young people what they can expect from us as corporate parents, what their rights and entitlements
are. The guide also includes jargon busters, key contact numbers for professionals who they are
involved with. This was launched at a Youth Voice conference in 2019.

The RAD unit needs to continue to encourage more children to participate in their review, and if they

want to, they should co-chair the meeting. It is an ongoing priority for 2020/21 to create a child
friendly review process that enables children to fully participate in their review

The IRO workload and what it means for Middlesbrough children

The team is growing to meet the needs of Middlesbrough children, as more children come into care
more IROs are needed to meet with children, young people and independently review their care
plans.

The caseloads for IROs in Middlesbrough has been above the government guidance set out in the IRO
handbook as 50-70, and above the local target of 80. IRO caseloads at times have exceeded 100,
which was the mean caseload average at the end of March 2020. For children in Middlesbrough this
means that their IRO has less time to dedicate to the continuous oversight of their plan or to raise
concerns that they have about care planning, drift and delay. In response to the increasing caseloads
and the outcome of the Ofsted inspection in 2019 it was agreed that additional IROs were needed
and those posts have since been approved and advertised but the impact is not yet seen.

IRO Workload

120
100
80
60
40
20

Caseload year end 2019 Caseload year end 2020 Government guidance (max) Local Target

The caseload numbers in isolation are not a clear indicator of the work undertaken by the IRO’s, as
children and young people’s circumstance and situations vary in complexity, and in distance which

Page 58

6



needs to be travelled. Children who are recently accommodated, placed at distance, involved in care
proceedings or are in placement disruption require a higher level of scrutiny and oversight than
children who are in long term settled foster placements. As Middlesbrough are on an improvement
journey the oversight of an IRO must be robust and effective, high caseloads can be a barrier to that.

The IRO service needs to be a resilient and flexible service that can to respond to peaks in demand,
whilst still maintaining high levels of continuous oversight and challenge practice issues when they
impact on outcomes for children and young people of Middlesbrough. Since November 2019 the
increase in demand has prevented IROs from being able to continuously review children’s files as
robustly and as often as the practice standards are set at for Middlesbrough IROs.

There was more children in our
care from 1% April 2019 to 31
March 2020 than last year. This
means more children to visitT

As of 31°t March 2020 51%
of children in our care live
outside of Middlesbroug
so there is further to travel
_ to visit them at ho/me

O

More children have had 3 or

more placements, every time

a child or young person
moves they need an

~ independent review and

sometimes a disruption
_ meeting

As of 31°t March 2020, 27% of
children in our care are subject
of Interim Care Orders so they
~_ need more oversight to make
sure their long-term plan is

right for them
< /

independently review

As of 31° March 2020 there
are more children are subject
to a Child Protection plan
that need Initial and Review
Child Protection Conference
chairing by an I/RO

/

What did Ofsted say about IRO’s in Middlesbrough?

1. The effectiveness of oversight from independent reviewing officers needs to improve

2. Independent reviewing officers provide inadequate scrutiny to ensure that children’s
planning is proportionate and that they are not subject to social work involvement
unnecessarily. Some children, particularly those affected by long-term neglect, have waited
too long for protective action.

3. Children benefit from opportunities to meet with their independent reviewing officers, with
whom they develop good relationships over time. Their care planning and review meetings
are well attended by professionals, but delays in achieving permanence are not sufficiently
challenged by these professionals

Page 59



What does performance data for IROs indicate for 2019-207

0000000000

The number of children in our care has increased by
100to 619, a rate of 188.75 per 10,000. This is higher
than regional, statistical neighbours and national

picture

The average caseload for IROs has been higher than
the recommended national guidance and the local
target throughout the year

There has been a slight decrease in Children in
Care Reviews taking place in timescales from 90
to 89%

Less children attended their Children in Care
Review and spoke for themselves

IROs maintain independent child protection Chair
responsibilities and the number of ICPCs, CPRC
and CP plans at year end has increased
significantly during 2019-20

The number of children who have had 3 or more
placements increased from 8.5% to 13.8%
meaning more reviews are taking place

The number of ICPCs held in timescales has
declined from 81.1% in 2018/19 to 75.4% in
2019/20

The number of RCPCs held in timescales has
declined by 16.6% in 2018/19 to 80% in 2019/20

Despite 166 IRO challenges being raised
throughout the year audit has identified that
there are children experiencing drift and delay
without sufficient IRO challenge and oversight

Drift and delay is the primary reason for 64.5% of
IRO challenge raised throughout the year

Page 60

The number of children subject of a protection plan
and coming into our care increased following the
Ofsted inspection in 2019, audit tells us that this is a
response to our threshold realigning and risk for
those children being managed at the right level

The number of children leaving our care increased
meaning more children are being moved on to their
plan of permanence. More children aged 5-15 left
our care this year than last year

The main reason for children leaving our care
throughout the year was for “Residence or Child
Arrangements Order” meaning permanence was
achieved within the family network

The number of children in care reviews increased
from 1254 to 1434 and 89% remained in timescales

The likelihood of being subject to a repeat chid
protection plan reduced from 25.2 to 18.6% in
2019/20

The length of time that a child is likely to be subject
to a protection plan decreased during 2019/20
with fewer children having a plan in place over 18
months

When IRO challenge is being raised it is being
responded to and ‘recovery plans’ are being
agreed to resolve the issues raised



i

@5}1

It ~N

Positivity Poster created by a young
Person in our care, Age 11.

What are we doing about it

Increase the workforce so Increase management
each child has more time capacity to improve
dedijcated to them by their management

IRO oversight of IROs

Provide more training

Review and re-launch
rolicies, procedures and safe reflective space
and practice standards

for IROs to learn and

for IROs develop their practice
Strengthen audit and ensure Actlvlely ENeass YQUNe
learning is used to improve REQRIE 12 SURRAr Hs 19
. improve service delivery
practice

Positivity Poster, created by a young man in our Care, Age 10

The IRO Service is on an improvement journey, along with colleagues in Children’s Social Care. We
know from Ofsted findings that children benefit from having opportunities to meet with their IRO,
we know from formal feedback from some of our children and young people that they value the input
from their IRO. The RAD unit needs to build on the strengths within the unit to ensure that each child
has a consistently good service.

“I get a boost of confidence from my IRO, social workers and foster carers”

What helps me is that 1 am updated throughout, 1 know what is happening, keeping the
same IRO from the start”

Page 61

9



Overview of Children who are in our care

/ )

S
4

619 children are in our care
which is 100 more than last year

o 342 are male
o 277 are female
Thismeansthat 189 out of every

Qﬂﬂﬂchildr&n are looked after iry
Middleshruugh

293 children camme
into care, anincrease

from 203 last yvear

:-"' "~: 193 children left aur

care in 2019420, an
increase from 151 |ast

wEar

\ ar place d for adoption. /

89% of Children in Care
Reviews took place in
timescales. Thisis down
from 95% lastyear

Age Groups of Children
in our Care

40.00%
20.00% /_A
0.00%
Under 1-4 5-9 10- 16&
1 15  Over

e AS 35 Mar-31st 2019
e AS at Mar 31st 2020

Most of our children are living with Foster
Carers (48.2%) orwith Family and Friends

who are Connected Carers [(21.2%) Some

children are place d with their own parents
ar sarme one whio has parental re sponsibil-
ity forthem (14 5% Some children live in

children's homes [(9.7%). Some care |eav-
ers over 16 live in semi (2.3%) or inde-
pendent accommodation [1.5%]). Much

fewer (lessthan 196) are also living in se-

cure children's homes MHSHealth Trust

More children participat-

ed intheir reviews, anly

9.4% had no child present

and did not convey their

wiews in other way s

Page 62

10

/Mnst of the children in our care ;\

White British (79.6%)
3.5% are African
3.3% are Any otherWwhite background
1.3% are Gyps/Roma
There are lessthan 10 children from
gach other ethnicities; Banglade shi,
Pakistani, Traveller of Irish Heritage,
Wihite and Black African, White and
Black Caribbean, white Irish, Asian,
Ary other Asian Background, mixed

Qlack and mixed white hackgrnuw

Childre n who have 3 or

rore place ments indi-

cate same instability.
Thiswas the case for
13.8% of children in aur
care in 201920

Children in place ment
A far mare than 2.5

yearsindicate s place-
tne nt stability, this has
improved slightly and

isthe case for 51.7%

of our children

59% of children were
visite d by their IRO
before their review

(this includes children

under 4]



What is the Issues Resolution Process telling us about Children’s experience

in our Care

During 2019 the Issues Resolution Process was embedded within the child’s liquid logic electronic

file, this has enabled better oversight of the number of IRO challenges raised, the nature of the

challenge, the timescale in which they were resolved. During 2019/20 we know that there was 166

IRO challenges raised through the Issues Resolution Process. This is a slight reduction on 2018/19 and
reflects higher caseloads meaning IROs have

[ Child Protection ] { Children in our } less time to continuously oversee children’s

(11/166) care (162/166) plans and raise challenge when delay has
occurred. Nevertheless, there are clear
themes emerging from the Issues Resolution
Process that give a sense of what life is like
rift and Delay (64~5%), for children in our care in Middlesbrough. It
is evident that IRO challenge for children in
care far outweighs the challenge for children
who have been subject to a protection plan.

Drift and 5 ’ : .
delay (73% There has been a disproportionate focus on
children in care as we know from audit and

Proced ; e pla . . .
fouoﬁmg;‘;?'” thechild1,2 0 the Ofsted inspection that many children
__—“——— Othe 5 subject to protection plans are waiting too

D

long for protective action to be taken.

An overview of the IRO challenge highlights
that children in our care experience drift and
delay, this makes up 64.5% of all IRO
challenges, we know from audit and from the Ofsted report that there are other children who have
experienced drift and delay without sufficient IRO oversight, meaning more challenge could and
should have been raised for those children.

A principle of the Issues Resolution Process

is to resolve challenge at the lowest Level of Escalation

possible level, any issues that can be,

should be resolved informally between the |

IRO and Social Worker and/or their 1

manager (stage 1). However, during B —
2019/20 more IRO challenge was escalated 0 20 40 60 80
to stage 3 (Head of Service) than any other
level. There was also an increase in the
number of IRO challenges escalated to
Stage 4 (Director) and one referral to the
Children and Family Court Advisory and
Support Service (CAFCASS). CAFCASS are responsible for independently advising the family Courts
about what is safe for children and what is in their best interest. When CAFCASS receive a referral
from an IRO they will enter into a final dispute resolution with the local authority before proceedings

M Referral to CAFCASS M Stage 5 (DCS)
Stage 4 (Director) Stage 3 (Head of Service)

M Stage 2 (Team Manager) M Stage 1 (informal)

Page 63

11



are issued. If matters are not resolved CAFCASS can initiate legal action on behalf of the child
including proceedings under Section 7 (1) of the Human Rights Act 1998; Claim for judicial review;
and other proceedings (for example under the Children Act 1989).

Service Level Challenges

During 2019/20 the RAD unit has raised a number of service level challenges regarding quality of
practice and drift and delay for children and young people. Firstly, in May 2019 IROs identified a
cohort of children who were unnecessarily subject of Care Orders, they were either placed with
parents or living with connected carers, and their plan was to revoke the Care Order but that had not
happened within a timescale appropriate for the child. It was the view of the IRO that they were
receiving unnecessary Social Work intervention and therefore a report was written and submitted to
senior managers for consideration. Although this piece of work identified specific children who
required review the work was not impactful and as identified by Ofsted, many of these children
continued to receive unnecessary Social Work intervention at the end of 2019. There was learning
from this challenge for the RAD unit, what was missing was individual IRO challenge for each child so
that their unique circumstances could be investigated, individual resolution meetings did not take
place to identify a SMART plan for each child. As a result this meant that action was not taken for
these children as individuals which must happen in future, this will then demonstrate effective IRO
challenge by ensuring that IRO challenge has a positive outcome for children.

A second service level challenge was raised in June 2019 due to concerns that children in our care, in
a particular service area, were not receiving good quality intervention, the statutory compliance
around visits, seeing children and reviews was not being met and their plans were drifting. The Issues
Resolution Process had been used repeatedly but was not having a positive impact on children and
young people. As a result a letter was sent to the Director of Children’s Care with a summary of
concerns for all of the children whereby formal challenge had been ineffective. The outcome of this
was that all of the children in our care who were affected were allocated to permanent members of
staff within Middlesbrough so that their plans could be progressed.

A third service level challenge was raised in September 2019 about the use of family and friends
placements and whether the child is considered a looked after child (S20, Children Act 1989) or not.
During 2018/19 there had been a number of children who were living with family under what was
described as a ‘family arrangement’ and arrangement which was brought about by the family and
not by the Local Authority or police. Some of these children had restrictions in place preventing the
parents collecting the child or having unsupervised time together, what was apparent for some of
these children is that they should have been children in our care. The challenge raised in 2018/19
was upheld and a targeted piece of work was undertaken to ensure that all children living in “‘family
arrangements’ had been reviewed and legal advice sought. In September 2019 there was some
concern that these placements were continuing, this was escalated to the Director of Children’s Care
to review the arrangements and ensure that there were no other children in similar circumstances as
these children would not have come to the attention of the IRO unit. This led to a review of children
living with family in each service area to ensure that children were not placed with family, without
considering their rights as looked after children.

Page 64

12



Quality Assurance for children in our care

Quality assurance is a crucial part of the IRO role, it is important that IROs monitor the Local
Authority’s compliance with statutory requirements as well as the quality of interventions and the
impact that they have on outcomes for our children. During 2019/20 the IRO audit process was
strengthened by creating an electronic compliance (audit) tool which is embedded into the child’s
electronic file (LCS). The benefits for the child mean that their unique circumstances are assessed,
any good practice is identified or any failures are highlighted and addressed by the Social Worker
under the supervision of their Team Manager. In addition to this, the use of an electronic recording
system allows large quantities of data to be analysed and any systemic or widespread concerns can
be raised at a senior level.

The IRO compliance (audit) tool is designed to be used before every review. However, the audit
process commenced late (in August 2019) since then 10% of audits have been completed for children
in care. The audit process has not yet been well embedded, this is in part due to the increase in
demand and capacity issues within the Review and Development unit.

\L

)

Findings from IRO audit of Looked After Reviews

e 88% of reviews were held in timescales, the most common reason for the CLA review being held late was

due to no Social Worker or no Social Work report available for the meeting to take place.

e  90% of audits found that the right people were participating in children’s reviews, which is also reflected in

Ofsted findings

e 53% of Health Assessments had been undertaken and only 65% of those were fully considered at the review.

e Only 32% of audits found that other agencies were sharing reports for a child’s review

o 34% of the reviews had a PEP available, which is a statutory requirement

e Only 47% of children were properly prepared for their review by their Social Worker, even less were

consulted about where they wanted their review, when, and asked who they wanted to participate.
e In 75% of reviews children’s views and wishes were clearly presented

o 28% of children who participated sent consultation documents

e 30% of audits found that children’s details were not accurately recorded or up to date, the most common

issues identified were that the school and placement address need to be updated.

e 50% of audits found that children were not being visited frequently enough
e Only 28% of children have an advocate

e Only 2% of those audited had an independent visitor

e When the review was decision making review, only 51% had a plan of permanence

e 75% of children were in a placement that had been assessed in accordance with the statutory requirements,

such as approved connected carer, placement with parents regulations assessed and approved.

Page 65

13



What have children and young people told us about the IRO service?

r L] — n — L] — n — L] — n — L] — n — L] — n — L] — n — L] — n — L] —

In October 2019 Tell us More Survey of children in our care taught us;

89% felt that their IRO does what they say they will
91% said that their IRO helps them to understand what is happening
93% said that their worker explained why they were working with them and their family

80% said that they had been involved in making plans about what needs to happen to make things
better

93% said that their IRO spent time with them and listened to what they have to say

83% said they felt their IRO had helped them to feel safe

93% felt able to talk to their IRO

Anything else about how the IRO has worked with them and their family which they
would like to comment on?

“T can always share how
things are, my JRO does
what she says she will”

R
RN ——

If you could change one thing about how your IRO is working with you, what would it be?

“To be told when my IRO /s coming”
“T wish my IRO wasnh’t §oing on maternity [eave”
“TF she gave us sweets”
“Che could tell me to stop talking because ] always interrupt”
“To make sure she Carries on to take up matters we Jren’t please with regarding
Page 66-rer”

h L] — L] L L] — L] L L] — L] L L] — L] L L] — L] L L] — L] L L] — L] L L] _—

14



Pretty much the majority of my life has been spent stuck in the system, | have lived in numerous placements
allowing me to see the different lifestyles and behaviour of other people trapped in the same boat. Allowing me to
witness the lives of others and their actions, fair to say | was appalled at how immature some individuals were
behaving towards the lovely staff who are just trying to help us all and support us. I've been places were kids would
kick off, shout, swear, run away and break things just for little petty reasons like not having a cigarette or an energy
drink. It was this that made me realise ‘why the f*** are you acting childish, the more you behave like that the less
they're going to give you what you want.’

Now I’'m not saying | was no angel, I’'ve been down that path myself associating with the wrong people acting kiddish
just to get a few people off my back but | never understood how it fully came across until | get evicted out of my
1st opportunity in life and was left boiling in the police station. My mind spoke to me and pointed out that if | kept
going the way | was going | would just be one of them other Kids stuck in a cell with all the excuses in the world to
why life wasn’t fair to me. That’s what made me change it around | said to myself life IS unfair but it's up to me to
create my own luck. The following week | was given a beautiful house in Middlesbrough with everything | could of
wished for. This was the point in my life where it was make or break, | knew that if | fucked this up for myself | would
have nowhere and wouldn’t be trusted in a nice valuable home.

I’d moved in and tried my best to be as polite and helpful with the Placement staff as | could be. Turns out that |
had actually created a very good bond between me and my support workers just through engaging in normal
conversation and showing them that | was different. Couple months went by and | started working which showed
the staff that | wasn’t a bum living off my £52 a week but the fact that | was earning my own wage, showing
determination of showing up to work early everyday putting long hours in after walking there and back most days
of the week.

During the local lockdown this gave me time to reflect the future of my life and the next step after leaving supported
living so | started reading books giving me the knowledge | needed on how to grow myself as a person, learning
how to manage money and using the law of attraction to manifest my life into a good one and keeping myself calm
and composed in pressured situations. Which then lead to the place | wanted to be moving into my new very own
flat.

The time | spent with Placement really changed my life and the perspective of it. One of the reasons being the staff
there, normally in most places staff act like a social worker or a needy parent which | think cause the kids to start
acting like a d*** just to cope with some of the in your face staff but | didn’t have this problem here, the support
workers | had were not only staff but they were your friend in the placement. There were many times we’d laugh
hysterically or talk about common interests which is what | think made the whole situation bearable.

If | were to give any advice to the companies like [supported accommodation] | would strongly advise to employ
young people who are down to earth and who understand the everyday life of a teenager. People who can take a
joke and have a laugh with the kids and people who are able to go out and do things with them like going to the
gym every morning or walks up the hills.

As well as staff if | were to give some advice to the young persons in the same position as me | would tell them to
play the game, follow the rules, respect the house and staff and give back to what they give you because it all goes
a long way in your favour being trusted.

Because of all this | am now sat writing this on my new sofa sat in my new flat with a big smile on my face. This was
the experience | needed to kickstart my life and the lessons | have learned have put me on the track to succeeding
in life and making this world mine!

Page 67



528

Children were subject of a Protection 51% are male

Plan, that is 169 more than last year. 1 o _
N || FOTEecCT 47% are female

379

2% are unborn
children were subject of a protection

plan on 31,3,2020

Number of ICPCs % of 1ICPCs held in Timescales
&00

L0 87
00 151 out of every 10,000 children are ‘:::

subject of a protection planin :1 ~
cln

Middlesbrough, this rate has

7E
f0
increased wear onyear since 2017 68
FLF]
G
62
[4] 2007718 (%) 2018719 (%) 2019720 (%)
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 201520

)

The number of Initial Child Protection

2040

100

\_
4

75.5% of children had an Initial Child

Protection Conference in timescales,
this is below the target of 95%

-~

Conferences held has increase year on

year since 2017 . G H
( r 4 CHILDREN
M I T E R

Mumbear of Children with Znd or
Subsequent CF Plans al RCPCs hed in Timescale
100y 10
o]
i

/ Categories of Abuse;
/ Neglect 61.3%

/ Emotional Abuse 30%
Physical Ahuse 7%

Sexual Abuze 1.6%

2017/1K 201815 2018 /20

When we get Child Protection
Conferences right young people tell

s

“I like that | was able to express

The number of children subject to a my feelings and | was involved”
protection plan over 2-years has re-

duced from 8.6% to 4.5% in 2019720

80% of children had a Review Child
Protection Conference in timescales,

Page 68 this is below the target of 95%



Quality assurance for Child Protection

The IRO compliance (audit) tool is designed to be used before every child protection conference.
However, the audit process commenced late (in August 2019) since then 11% of audits have been
completed for children subject to a protection plan. The audit process has not yet been well
embedded, this is in part due to the increase in demand and capacity issues within the Review and
Development unit.

The performance on formal IRO Challenge through the local Issues Resolution Process tells us that
the focus within the RAD unit has been largely on children in our care, there is a disproportionately
low number of formal IRO challenges raised in relation to children who are subject to a protection

S\

L

Findings from IRO audit of Child Protection Conferences

e 79% of the audits reflect that the child protection conferences were held in timescales, the most

common reason for the 21% being out of timescales was due to staffing and capacity within the
RAD unit. The unit experienced increase in demand and high levels of staff sickness in early 2020
which had a significant impact on performance.

Only 32% of children were seen by their Social Worker often enough
93% of children’s information was accurately recorded on the child’s file

All relevant people were invited to 81% of conferences, for the 19% of audits this was 2 sibling groups but
in both cases it referred to absent fathers.

Around 40% of reports required for conference are sent late to the RAD unit, this means that the child,
parents and professionals do not have sufficient time to prepare for the meeting.

Auditors found that voice of the child was evident in only 66% of audits

Multi-agency working was deemed to be effective in 91% of cases, however only 34% of Core Group
meetings are reviewing the plan in timescales

Overall when RAG rating the audits, 69% were RED, 5% were AMBER and 26% were GREEN

Each child will receive individual recommendations following the completion of an IRO audit, the
learning from all of the audits is analysed with a view to understanding themes that can be reported
to Heads of Service and the Principle Social Worker to improve service delivery. There are findings
from both the Child Protection and Looked After audits that will be used to inform the priorities and
planning for 2020/2021.

Page 69

17



In addition to IRO audit there has continued to be some themed ‘Challenge Clinics’ facilitated by the
RAD unit and co-chaired by the Head of Service for Safeguarding and Care Planning. Challenge clinics
are focussed look at children that data suggests may be of concern. During 2019/20 some of those
themes were the duration of child protection plans and the amount of children who had more or one
child protection plan. The panel aims to review individual children’s circumstances to ensure that risk
is being managed at the right level and that they are not experiencing drift and delay.

2nd and Subsequent Child Protection Plans

The facts?

17 children from 9 families have had 2 or more pro-
tection plans in the past 2 years

10 of these children, from 6 families have had 2 pro-
tection plans ever

7 of these children, from 4 families have had 3 pro-
tection plans in their lives

5 children have had 3 plans under the category of
neglect

3 children had multiple categories of emational abuse
and neglect but on both occasions the concerns were
around how domestic abuse affected the children’s
safety and wellbeing

Legal advice had been sought for all of the children
who needed it, where appropriate a Public Law Out-
line letter had been issued

1 child was identified as needing an earlier review as

there was no progress being made for the child

The Themes

There are some children whereby fluctuating care is evident, for
these children it has fallen above and below the threshold of

significant harm up to 3 times

Not all children had an up to date assessment on which their
plan was based, this makes it difficult to understand impact on
the child and what protective action needed to be taken. Social
Workers were tasked with updating assessments these

assessments.

The category of Neglect is a common theme, and for these chil-

dren the reoccurring risks remained the same

Legal Advice is being taken when children have a 2nd or subse-

quent plan

The outcome?

A second or subsequent child protection plan is not necessarily a concern in itself because it may reflect a new risk of
significant harm to a child that had not existed previously. However, the majority of children subject to a protection plan
in Middlesbrough are under the categories of neglect (55%) then emotional abuse (35%). When children experience ne-

glect patterns can emerge showing that care fluctuates and at times falls above and below the threshold of significant
harm, for these children protection plans may end and re-start. What is important is ensuring that children are not expe-
riencing prolonged cumulative neglect that is harmful to their welfare and development in the long-term. This challenge
clinic identified that some children, but not all, have repeat protection plans. The learning from this challenge clinic will
be used to support learning and development of Social Workers, their managers and independent Conference Chairs to

identify much sooner signs of cumulative harm.

Page 70

18



2nd and Subsequent Child Protection Plans

The facts?

17 children from 9 families have had 2 or more pro-
tection plans in the past 2 years

10 of these children, from 6 families have had 2 pro-
tection plans ever

7 of these children, from 4 families have had 3 pro-
tection plans in their lives

5 children have had 3 plans under the category of
neglect

3 children had multiple categories of emotional abuse
and neglect but on both occasions the concerns were
around how domestic abuse affected the children’s
safety and wellbeing

Legal advice had been sought for all of the children
who needed it, where appropriate a Public Law Out-
line letter had been issued

1 child was identified as needing an earlier review as

there was no progress being made for the child

The Themes

There are some children whereby fluctuating care is evident, for
these children it has fallen above and below the threshold of

significant harm up to 3 times

Not all children had an up to date assessment on which their
plan was based, this makes it difficult to understand impact on
the child and what protective action needed to be taken. Social
Workers were tasked with updating assessments these

assessments.

The category of Neglect is a common theme, and for these chil-

dren the reoccurring risks remained the same

Legal Advice is being taken when children have a 2nd or subse-

quent plan

The outcome?

A second or subsequent child protection plan is not necessarily a concern in itself because it may reflect a new risk of
significant harm to a child that had not existed previously. However, the majority of children subject to a protection plan
in Middleshrough are under the categories of neglect (55%) then emotional abuse (35%). When children experience ne-

glect patterns can emerge showing that care fluctuates and at times falls above and below the threshold of significant
harm, for these children protection plans may end and re-start. What is important is ensuring that children are not expe-
riencing prolonged cumulative neglect that is harmful to their welfare and development in the long-term. This challenge
clinic identified that some children, but not all, have repeat protection plans. The learning from this challenge clinic will
be used to support learning and development of Social Workers, their managers and independent Conference Chairs to

identify much sooner signs of cumulative harm.

Summary

The Review and Development unit continues to work hard to serve the children of Middlesbrough,
throughout the past year this has come with a number of challenges. There has been a significant
increase in demand for the number of children who have been presented to Initial Child Protection
Conferences as well as an increase in children who are in our care, we have unfortunately seen that
there has been a decline in timeliness of statutory meetings taking place as a result of the increase in
demand and staff being at capacity. However, it is a priority that for the next year that work is
undertaken to review the team size and structure so that the demand can be met in future, so that

children can experience timely reviews.

Page 71

19



IROs in Middlesbrough have demonstrated more challenge than any previous year, that said there is
still more to do. IROs play a key role in supporting the improvement journey in Middlesbrough. We
know from feedback from our young people, and Ofsted findings, that children in our care benefit
from having a relationship with their IRO and this is a strength that will be built upon in the coming
year.

In order to strengthen challenge and oversight, the quality assurance role of IROs also needs to
improve, more focussed audit needs to be undertaken and more robust scrutiny of children’s Care
Plans needs to happen within reviews. IROs will be given a clear focus on priority areas that will have
most impact on children and young people.

The IRO improvement journey will be closely linked to the Children’s Services Improvement Plan.
There are specific responsibilities outlined within the improvement plan for the IRO unit which is to
undertake focussed development work with operational managers to ensure IRO challenges are
actioned in ongoing practice, and aggregate IRO challenge themes via Quality Assurance process to
inform future practice developments. However, the IRO have a key role in the overall delivery of the
improvement plan by monitoring the Local Authority’s performance as corporate parents and
providing robust scrutiny of children’s care plans to ensure that children are receiving a good service
that promotes good outcomes.

The RAD unit will continue to drive a child focussed approach to everything that we do. This will
ensure that children are listened to and that their wishes are given sufficient weight, both in relation
to their own plan and improvements to overall service delivery.

Priorities for 2020/2021

1. Review the capacity and structure of the RAD unit to ensure that it can meet the current
demand and enable IROs to have increased, effective oversight of children and young people’s
plans. This will lead to better oversight and improvement in the timeliness of statutory
meetings (both child protection and looked after reviews)

2. Improve the quality and effectiveness of IRO challenge. This will include a review and re-
launch of the current Issues Resolution Procedure. Resolving challenge at a lower level, which
will demonstrate management grip of plans for children and young people.

3. Strengthen the quality assurance of children who are subject of a child protection plan. This
will include strengthening the child protection conference through re-launching a good
practice guide for Social Workers and partner agencies. Increasing the level of oversight from
the Independent Chairs between reviews. More targeted challenge of children who have
multiple CP plans, or those that exceed 15-months

4. Engage with young people at all levels. This includes increasing visits to children before their
review, more children attending their meetings (both child protection conferences and looked
after reviews) and enabling children to provide feedback that will be used to improve service
delivery.

5. Provide Training to IROs to build on the skills, knowledge and experience that exists within
the Service. Ensure that IROs are best equipped to provide strong independent challenge to
the Local Authority and ensure that plans are driven forward without delay. We will know this
has worked when IRQ’s effectively challenge if children are not receiving the right support at
the right time, they are experience delay and subject to cumulative neglect so that children
do reach their plan of permanence in a timely way.

Page 72

20



6. Develop Team profile and plans based on focussed auditing of the IRO service as part of audit
to excellence programme

Page 73

21



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Action Plan- 28 October 2020
	6 Voice of the Child/ Participation Update
	9 Residential Services- April 2020 – Present- Regulation 44 Report
	10 Future for Families update
	11 Fostering Service Update
	12 Independent Reviewing Officers' (IRO) Annual report- April 2019- March 2020

